
 

 
 
 
Having trouble reading this? Please call 0115 901 3907 if you need it in large print, audio 

or another format. 

 
 

 

 

Agenda 

Civic Centre,  
Arnot Hill Park,  

Arnold, 
Nottinghamshire,  

NG5 6LU 
 

 

 

Standards Committee 
 

 

 

Date: Thursday 22 May 2025 

Time: 6.00 pm 

Place: Council Chamber 

 
For any further information please contact:  

Francesca Whyley 

Deputy Chief Executive & Monitoring Officer 

0115 901 3907 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 
 

Standards Committee 
 
Membership 
 
 
Chair Councillor Paul Feeney 
  

Vice-Chair Councillor David Brocklebank 

 
Councillor Boyd Elliott 
Councillor Andrew Ellwood 
Councillor Martin Smith 
Councillor Clive Towsey-Hinton 
Rosalie Hawks 
Louise Kopyrko 

 
 

 
WEBCASTING NOTICE 

 
Please note that this meeting will be live streamed on the Council's YouTube 
channel and via the website (www.gedling.gov.uk). At the start of the meeting 

the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being broadcast. 
 

You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data 
Protection Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance 

with the Council’s published policy. 
 

For more information about how your personal data is collected and used please 
view our privacy notice https://www.gedling.gov.uk/elections-privacy/  

 
Responsibility of committee: 
Within their terms of reference the Standards Committee will be responsible for: 
a) promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by the members and co-opted 
members of the council; 
b) assisting members and any co-opted members of the Council to observe the Members’ 
Code of Conduct; 
c) advising the Council on the adoption or revision of the Members’ Code of Conduct; 
d) monitoring the operation of the Members’ Code of Conduct; 
e) advising, training or arranging to train members and any co-opted members of the council 
on matters relating to the Members’ Code of Conduct; 
f) performing the functions set out in (a) - (e) above in respect of the parish councils in the 
Borough; 
g) granting dispensations to members and any co-opted members from requirements relating 
to interests set out in the Members’ Code of Conduct; 
h) dealing with any reports from the Monitoring Officer on any matter; 
i) advising on what should be entered into the register of interests for members and co-opted 
members; 

http://www.gedling.gov.uk/
https://www.gedling.gov.uk/elections-privacy/


 

 
 

j) dealing with matters relating to the recruitment of co-opted independent and parish 
members of the Standards Committee; 
k) dealing with matters relating to the recruitment of the Independent Person and to make 
recommendations to Council as to the appointment of the Independent Person. 
l) approving all strategies, policies, protocols and procedural documents that fall within the 
remit of the Committee (excluding budget and policy framework items). 
 
 



 

 

AGENDA 
 

Page 

 

1   Apologies for Absence  

2   To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 20 
March 2025 

5 - 6 

3   Declaration of interests  

4   Enhanced DBS checks for councillors 7 - 14 

 Report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer  

5   Any other item which the Chair considers urgent  



MINUTES 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 
Thursday 20 March 2025 

 
Councillor Paul Feeney (Chair) 

 
Councillor David Brocklebank 
Councillor Andrew Ellwood 
Councillor Darren Maltby 
Councillor Martin Smith 

Councillor Clive Towsey-Hinton 
Rosalie Hawks 
Louise Kopyrko 

 

Officers in 
Attendance: 

B Hopewell, N Osei and F Whyley 

 
14    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Elliot, Councillor 
Maltby attended as substitute. 
 

15    TO APPROVE, AS A CORRECT RECORD, THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING HELD ON 28 NOVEMBER 2024  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the above meeting, having been circulated, be 
approved as a correct record. 
 

16    DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
None. 
 

17    REVIEW THE OPTIONS FOR ARRANGEMENTS FOR DEALING 
WITH ENHANCED DISCLOSURE AND BARRING CHECKS FOR 
COUNCILLORS  
 
The Deputy Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer introduced a report, 
which had been circulated in advance of the meeting, seeking support 
through a cross-party working group review to create a policy and 
process document in respect of Enhanced DBS checks for Councillors. 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 

1) Note the report; and 

 
2) Agree to establish a cross-party working group to assist the Monitoring 

Officer in the creation of a Policy and Procedure for Enhanced 
Disclosure and Barring Services Checks for Councillors. 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 

18    ARRANGEMENT FOR DEALING WITH CODE OF CONDUCT 
COMPLAINTS  
 
The Deputy Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer introduced a report, 
which had been circulated in advance of the meeting, seeking approval 
of amendments to the Council’s Arrangements for dealing with Code of 
Conduct complaints, following review by the working group. 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 
Agree to the amendments to the Council’s Arrangements for Dealing 
with Code of Conduct Complaints. 
 

19    CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS UPDATE  
 
The Deputy Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer introduced a report, 
which had been circulated in advance of the meeting, informing 
Members of the Standards Committee of complaints received between 
28 November 2024 and 20 March 2025. 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 
Note the report. 
 

20    ANY OTHER ITEM WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT  
 
None. 
 
 
 

The meeting finished at 6.20 pm 
 
 

 
 

Signed by Chair:    
Date:   

  

Page 6



 

 
 

Report to Standards Committee 
 
Subject:   
 

Disclosure and Barring Checks for Councillors 
 

Date:  22nd May 2025 

Author:  Monitoring Officer 

Purpose 

 To seek approval for a policy and process document in respect of 
Disclosure and Barring Services (DBS) checks for Councillors to be 
presented to Council 

Recommendation 
 
                THAT Committee: 
 

1) Note the contents of this report. 
2) Agrees that the Policy and Procedure for Disclosure and Barring Services 

checks for Councillors at Appendix 1 be referred to Council for 
consideration. 
 

  

1 Background 

1.1 In January 2025, Council agreed a motion in the following terms: 

We the Council recognise that the safety of staff, fellow councillors and 
residents alike currently is not completely represented within this chamber. 
 
As a result of this we would like to see all of the 2023-2027 intake of 
councillors and all in the future to undergo an enhanced DBS check. 
 
The cost will be met by the council. 
 
This will not only ensure better transparency but also ensure that any risk of 
harm or untoward behaviour is minimised. 
 
In light of the independent Bailey Review of the Disclosure and Barring 
Regime and the subsequent letter from the then Minister for Local 
Government to council leaders of 18th January 2024, Council refers the 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 

matter to the Standards Committee to give consideration to the policy and 
procedural issues raised and report back to Council. 
  

1.2 The Bailey Review, completed in May 2023, was an independent review of 
the disclosure and barring regime by Simon Bailey CBE, QPM. The review 
was to identify key issues of concern about the current regime; to consider 
current responses to them; assess and advise on risks and opportunities; 

and make recommendations for improvement. One of the nine resulting 

recommendations of that review was as follows: 

“An enhanced criminal record check is made mandatory for all councillors in 
Unitary and Single Tier Authorities who are being considered for 
appointment to any committee involved in decisions on the provisions of 
children’s services or services for vulnerable adults. I accept that this would 
require legislation and therefore some inevitable delay, so I further 
recommend that these authorities are encouraged to adopt this procedure 
as best practice pending legislation.” 

1.3 

 

 

 

1.4 

 

 

1.5 

 

 

 

1.6 

 

 

 

Within the review it was reflected that Councillors can cover a number of 
Councils from large unitary to parish councils. It was acknowledged that only 
Unitary Authorities and Upper Tier Authorities have responsibility for social 
services, including children’s services and the work of elected members 
within those councils may involve them taking decisions about the care of 
children and vulnerable adults, as such, it was felt those roles fell within the 
area of safeguarding with which the review was concerned.  

Following on from the review and recommendations, in January 2024, a 
letter was sent to the Leaders of all Unitary and Upper Tier Authorities 
encouraging the recommendation set out in paragraph 1.2 be adopted as 
best practice. 

Whilst it is not a legal requirement for Councillors to undertake DBS checks, 
Council have expressed a wish that enhanced checks are further explored 
for all Councillors, irrespective of roles they may hold in the Council. It 
should be noted that the disqualification of persons from standing for 
election to, or being members of, councils is governed by the provisions of 
the Local Government Act 1972 and the Local Government (Disqualification) 
Act 2022 which is outside the DBS regime.   

At the meeting of this Committee on 20th March, it was identified by the 
Monitoring Officer that further work was needed to explore the legality and 
process for Councillors obtaining enhanced DBS checks. It was agreed that 
a working group would be established to support the Monitoring Officer to 
develop proposals. The working group met on 7th May 2025 and considered 
the legal implications and process in relation to enhanced DBS checks for 

Page 8



 

 

1.7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.8 

 

 

 

 

1.9 

 

1.10 

 

 

 

1.11 

Councillors as set out within this report. 

There are four different levels of DBS check: 

 a basic check, which shows unspent convictions and conditional 
cautions – there are no eligibility requirements for such a check 
and the applicant can request a check for themselves. 

 a standard check, which shows spent and unspent convictions and 
adult cautions, from the Police National Computer which have not 
been filtered in line with legislation – there are eligibility 
requirements for a standard check, specifically this check relates 
to prescribed roles of which Councillor is not one. 

 an enhanced check, which shows the same as a standard check 
plus any information held by local police that’s considered relevant 
to the role – there are eligibility requirements for an enhanced 
check prescribed by statute and generally the requirement for an 
enhanced check relates to the performance of certain regulated 
activities. 

 an enhanced check with a check of the barred lists, which shows 
the same as an enhanced check plus whether the applicant is on 
the adults’ barred list, children’s barred list or both – there are 
eligibility requirements for this level of check. 

An individual Councillor can request a basic check DBS check for 
themselves. Anything above this level can only be obtained through an 
employer or regulator and registered body. The registered body (in this case 
the Council) has to ensure that they have the legal ability to submit 
applications. This is not simply based on the consent of the applicant being 
given, but on the eligibility criteria set out in statute. If an individual does not 
meet the criteria for an enhanced DBS check, the Council as a registered 
body cannot perform the check, nor can an individual request one for 
themselves independently. 

Specifically in relation to the office of Councillor, there is no specific legal 
requirement for Councillors to undertake any level of DBS check. It is not an 
office that is listed as requiring such checks. 

The Police Act 1997 (Criminal Records) Regulations 2022 provide that 
members of a local authority are eligible for an enhanced check if the 
authority discharges any social services functions which relate wholly or 
mainly to adults who receive health or social care services. As this Council 
does not discharge such functions, these criteria are not met. 

 
In relation to working with children, there is no specific reference to local 
authority members in the regulations, but the regulated activities in relation 

Page 9

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/dbs-filtering-guidance


 

 

 

 

 

1.12 

 

1.13 

 

 

 

1.14 

 

 

 

to children cover a range of activities and enhanced checks are required for 
some activities predominantly when individuals are caring for children or 
making decisions about their care or placement. In general terms, none of 
the Councillors at Gedling, as part of their roles have unsupervised contact 
with children or are making decisions about their placement, this is a 
decision at County level. 

Having considered the functions and roles of district Councillors, it is not 
clear that the regulated activities requiring an enhanced DBS check are 
satisfied.  

Having considered the approach taken at other authorities, whilst the County 
Council require enhanced checks, this is in line with legislation and some 
Councillors certainly in specific roles will indeed be carrying out regulated 
activity. At a district level, the approach varies, some councils do undertake 
basic checks (Ashfield and Mansfield), other authorities have no policy in 
relation to DBS checks. 

Having considered information in relation to the legal requirements of DBS 
enhanced checks, the working group recommended that all Councillors 
undergo basic DBS checks. As such, the group discussed the policy and 
process in respect of such checks and agreed the draft policy and process 
document at Appendix 1 be brought to Committee. 

 

2 Proposal 

2.1 

 

2.2 

 

 

2.3 

 

2.4 

 

2.5 

It is proposed that having regard to the legal position and the views of the 
working group that Committee agree the policy and procedure document at 
Appendix 1 be recommended to Council for approval. 

The policy confirms that basic DBS checks will be obtained by all 
Councillors within two months of the policy being agreed, or within two 
months for any new Councillor being elected. The cost of the checks will be 
met by the Council. 

In order to ease the administrative burden for the Council, the checks will be 
requested by Councillors and copies of the check provided to the Monitoring 
Officer within 28 days of receipt by the Councillor. 

The Monitoring Officer will keep a record of the dates checks have been 
requested and received and copies of any disclosure information contained 
within the checks. These will be kept securely and destroyed within 6 
months in line with the DBS Code of Practice. 

Where any information revealed within a DBS check raises cause for 

Page 10



 

 

 

 

2.6 

 

2.7 

concern the Monitoring Officer will discuss this with the individual councillor, 
Chief Executive and Group Leader if applicable. It may be agreed that a 
particular Councillor is not to carry out specific roles depending on the 
nature of the information disclosed. To be clear, under this policy there is no 
power to disqualify an individual Councillor. 

If a Councillor’s circumstances should change, in that they are convicted of 
an offence, the Monitoring officer should be notified within 28 days of 
conviction. 

It is proposed within the policy that failure to comply with the policy could 
amount to a Code of Conduct breach. 

 

3 Alternative Options 

3.1 

 

 

3.2 

Committee have been tasked with looking at a policy and procedural issues 
in relation to all Councillors undertaking an enhanced DBS check. 
Committee could determine not to recommend any level of DBS check but 
this would be contrary to the intention of the agreed motion.  

Committee could also consider other policy or procedural approaches than 
that set out in the attached Appendix 1, however this document is based on 
a similar approach taken by other authorities and complies with DBS Code 
of Practice and eligibility requirements for DBS checks.  

4 Financial Implications 

4.1 The costs associated with DBS checks for Councillors, it is proposed, are 
met by Council. The current cost of DBS checks for the Council is £21.50. 
Councillors will be re-imbursed for the cost of the check.  

5 Legal Implications 

5.1 

 

 

5.2 

Nothing in the Police Act 1997 (Criminal records) Regulations 2002 
specifically requires Councillors to undertake enhanced DBS checks to 
perform their roles. District Councillors do not have specific social care 
responsibilities. Whilst there is currently no policy or legal requirement for 
enhanced DBS checks to be undertaken, basic checks can be undertaken. 

In order to ensure compliance with information security and DBS Codes of 
Practice, a policy and process document has been prepared to support 
basic DBS checks. Ultimate approval of the document would be for Council. 

6 Equalities Implications 

Page 11



 

6.1 The Bailey review was specifically concerned with the protection of children 
and vulnerable adults. There are no direct equality implications relating to 
the undertaking of the checks, should councillors require support with the 
process this can be provided by the Monitoring Officer. 

7 Carbon Reduction/Environmental Sustainability Implications 

7.1 There are no carbon reduction/environmental sustainability implications 
arising from this report. 

8 Appendices 

8.1 Appendix 1 – Draft Policy and Procedure for Basic DBS checks for 
Councillors 

 

9 Background papers 

9.1 Independent Review of the Disclosure and Barring Regime - GOV.UK 

Letter from Minister for Local Government to leaders of unitary and upper 
tier authorities in England 

Revised Code of Practice for Disclosure and Barring Service Registered 
Persons 

10 Reasons for Recommendation 

10.1 To provide a framework for DBS checks for Council to consider. 

 

Statutory Officer approval 
 
Approved by the Chief Financial Officer 
Date:   
 
Drafted by the Monitoring Officer  
 

Page 12

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/independent-review-of-the-disclosure-and-barring-regime
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/65a90d5a94c997000daeb9f1/2024-01-18_Min_Hoare_DBS_Checks_Leaders.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/65a90d5a94c997000daeb9f1/2024-01-18_Min_Hoare_DBS_Checks_Leaders.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/5a817cbde5274a2e8ab5441d/Code_of_Practice_for_Disclosure_and_Barring_Service_Nov_15.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/5a817cbde5274a2e8ab5441d/Code_of_Practice_for_Disclosure_and_Barring_Service_Nov_15.pdf


Policy on Disclosure and Barring Service (“DBS”) Checks for Councillors  

  

Background  

  

1. This policy is introduced to support the resolution by Councillors passed 

on………… to introduce Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) Checks for all 

Councillors.  

 

2. This policy replaces all previous policies, decisions and/or precedents 

relating to criminal records checks for Gedling Borough Councillors.  

 

3. All Councillors have resolved to obtain a basic DBS check. This policy sets 

out the process for such checks and how information will be processed. 

  

The Process  

  

4. Within two months of the date of this Policy being approved and thereafter 

within two months of taking office following election or re-election, 

Councillors will be required to apply for a basic DBS check.  

  

5. Members will request a DBS check themselves and the cost of the check will 

be met by the Council. 

  

6. The relevant Councillor will be provided directly with a DBS certificate issued 

by the DBS. The Councillor will be required to provide a full copy of the DBS 

certificate to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of the date of issue of the 

DBS certificate, unless the content of the DBS certificate is  disputed and the 

dispute is raised with the DBS within 3 months of the date of issue, in which 

case the certificate must be provided to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days 

following the outcome of the dispute.  

  

7. The Monitoring Officer will maintain a record of the date a check was 

requested, and the date a response was received.  

 

 

8. The DBS certificate and information therein (Disclosure Information) will only 

be used for the specific purpose of compliance with this policy.  

  

9. Where Disclosure Information is made available this will be stored securely 

and destroyed within six months in line with the DBS Code of Practice. 

 

 

10. Once the retention period has elapsed, any Disclosure Information will be 

destroyed by secure means. While awaiting destruction, Disclosure 

Information will remain secure. No photocopy or other image of the 

disclosure or any copy or representation of the contents of a disclosure will 

be kept. As stated above however, the Monitoring Officer will maintain a 

Page 13



register of the date of the request for, and issue of a disclosure, the name of 

the subject and the detail of any decision taken as a result of the disclosure.  

  

The Use of Disclosure Information  

  

11. The existence of a criminal record or other information revealed as a result of a 

basic DBS check will not debar a Councillor from holding office.  

  

12. In the event that the disclosure information received raises issues of 

concern, the Chief Executive advised by the Monitoring Officer and in 

consultation with the relevant Group Leader (where applicable), will discuss 

with the individual Councillor whether any changes to the individual 

Councillor’s role may be required. 

  

13. This policy will be reviewed following every borough election and/or updated as 

and when required as a result of changes in the law.  

 

14. Failure to comply with this policy may amount to a breach of the Code of 

Conduct. 

 

Change in Circumstances 

 

15. Where there is any change of circumstances of a Councillor between obtaining 

a DBS check and the next election, in that the Councillor is convicted of an 

offence which would appear on a basic DBS check. The Councillor should 

notify the Monitoring Officer of the conviction within 28 days. 

Page 14


	Agenda
	2 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 20 March 2025
	4 Enhanced DBS checks for councillors
	Draft policy-on-disclosure-and-barring-service-for-councillors basic checks - Appendix 1


